
AMELIA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 

County Administration Conference Room 

16360 Dunn Street,  

Amelia, Virginia 23002 

Monday, June 26, 2023
7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA Action 

Needed 

 Call to Order 

Quorum 

Motion 

1. Call to Order and Welcome of Guests:  Larkin Moyer, Chairman

2. Determination of Quorum

3. Approval of Minutes

I. Regular Meeting May 22, 2023

4. Old Business

5. New Business

I. Public Hearing - Rezoning Request - Dutch Gap & Grill 
LLC (R-1 to Planned Community District)

6. Chairman Comments

7. Informational

8. Adjournment

SPEAKER RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Please respect all speakers and allow all opinions to be expressed in a tolerant atmosphere. 

a) Speakers may speak only once during a specific comment time and all comments should

be directed to the Planning Commission.

b) Speakers should approach the podium so they may be visible and audible to the Commission.

c) Each speaker should clearly state his/her name and address.

d) All questions should be directed to the Chairman.  Speakers are encouraged to contact staff

regarding unresolved concerns or to receive additional information.

e) Speakers should be brief and avoid repetition of previously presented comments.

Motion 



VIRGINIA: AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE AMELIA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION HELD  
IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING ON 
MONDAY, May 22, 2023, AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
PRESENT: LARKIN MOYER- Chairman     
  ROY EASTER – Vice-Chairman  
  JERRY “WHIT” MORRIS                        
    DENNIS RAMSEY         
  RICHARD CUMBIE, JR. 
  JOHN AARON 
  MICHAEL BATES 
  TRAVIS BARNARD  
  JUAN WHITTINGTON 
  DAVID FELTS, JR. – Board of Supervisors Representative 
 
ABSENT:  JENNIFER HARRIS 
 
   
   Amelia County Planning Commission 
 
  BRADY DEAL, Director of Community Development 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Moyer called the meeting of the Amelia County Planning Commission to order at 7:35 
p.m. The meeting start was delayed as the speakers in the room were not functioning properly.  
 
II. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Chairman Moyer declared there was a quorum with 10 of 11 members present at 7:35 p.m. 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Vice-Chairman Easter made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Morris that the Planning 
Commission approve the minutes of the April regular meeting. 
 
The motion carried 10-0 recorded as follows:  Larkin Moyer- AYE, John Aaron- AYE, Dennis 
Ramsey- AYE, Juan Whittington- AYE, Michael Bates- AYE, Travis Barnard- AYE Whit Morris- AYE, 
Roy Easter- AYE, Richard Cumbie- -AYE, David Felts- AYE. 
 
IV. OLD BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Moyer updated the Planning Commission on the items that had gone before the Board of 
Supervisors at their May Regular meeting. 
 
 
V.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

Public Hearing – Special Exception – Estebon Yoder – Stationary Sawmill 
 



Mr. Deal provided the staff report, stating that the applicant, Estebon Yoder, was requesting a 
special exception permit to operate a stationary sawmill on the property. He stated that the 
applicant had been operating the mill since January under the portable sawmill use provision and 
has since decided that he would like to continue the operations for the foreseeable future which 
would require him getting this special exception permit. 
 
Mr. Deal stated that he made a site visit and that the applicant was operating the mill along with his 
two sons. He stated that he had some boards prepared to go to Stuart’s Draft and be made into 
flooring and some 6x6 material that would be sent to Crewe to be made into railroad ties. 
 
Chairman Moyer asked if there would be any new buildings constructed for the operation. Mr. Deal 
responded that the existing building would continue to serve as the only structure. 
 
Commissioner Felts asked the applicant what the operating hours would be. Mr. Yoder stated that 
the mill would operate from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., 5 days a week. 
 
Chairman Moyer opened the public hearing at 7:50 p.m. 
 
Audrey L. Walker, 7 Woodgate Drive, Monmouth Junction, New Jersey, spoke in opposition of the 
request citing the following concerns; toxicity related to a sawmill, impact on property’s value, 
sawdust in the area, trucking noise, and noise from sawmill. 
 
Deidre Walker White provided a presentation of grievances regarding harmful effects related to 
sawmills and spoke in opposition of the project. 
 
Chairman Moyer closed the public hearing at 8:07 p.m. 
 
Chairman Moyer asked if Mr. Yoder was just sawing lumber, not treating it. Mr. Yoder responded 
yes. 
 
Commissioner Felts asked if it was a band mill. Mr. Yoder responded that it was being blown 
straight into a trailer and hauled away. 
 
Commissioner Morris asked what the applicant was doing with the dust. Mr. Yoder responded that 
it was being pumped into a trailer to take off of site. 
 
Commissioner Easter asked if it was noisy. Mr. Deal stated that it reminded him of a grain driver, 
being a constant hum during operation. 
 
Chairman Moyer asked how close the individuals’ land who spoke in the hearing was to this 
property. Mr. Deal responded that it was adjacent to it. 
 
The Commissioners asked some general questions regarding the property and the operation. A 
discussion ensued between them on the characteristics of the property. 
 
Commissioner Whittington asked if he had any intention of treating the material. Mr. Yoder 
responded that he would not be treating any lumber. 
 
Commissioner Cumbie asked if he had a fuel run sawmill or electric run sawmill. Mr. Yoder 
responded fuel, but that he plans to transition to electric if this request is approved. 



 
Commissioner Easter mentioned that the dust would not be an issue since it is pumped into the 
trailer. He also mentioned it would be very unlikely to combust due to the way it’s stored.  
A discussion ensued between the Commissioners regarding the setbacks for the structure. Mr. Deal 
responded that a primary structure would need to be 100 feet from the road, 40 feet from the side, 
and 40 feet from the rear. He added that he was not sure if this building was constructed under an 
exemption for an agricultural structure or under a permit for an accessory or primary structure and 
would look further into that matter. 
 
Commissioner Whittington asked if there would be any drying performed on site. Mr. Yoder 
responded that he pretty much loads it and sends it off once it is cut. 
 
Commissioner Easter stated that since he is not performing any treatment, he did not see that there 
would be any environmental concerns or dangers that would be created from this operation. 
 
Commissioner Whittington asked if the applicant’s property abutted the creek that was referenced. 
Mr. Yoder stated that the creek was behind is brother’s property which is between his property and 
the creek. 
 
The individuals that spoke during the public comment wanted to speak again and the Chairman 
permitted them too even though the public hearing had been closed. 
 
Audrey Walker asked some further questions, and the Chairman answered her questions with the 
information that was presented during the hearing. 
 
The husband of the Deidre Walker White asked who would enforce the rules of the facility and 
monitor the environmental areas. Chairman Moyer responded to his questions. 
 
Audrey Walker spoke further to her concerns and the Chairman responded to her questions as he 
was able. 
 
Commissioner Easter made a motion, seconded by Dennis Ramsey, that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval of the Special Exception Permit to the Board of Supervisors. 
 
The motion carried 10-0 recorded as follows:  Larkin Moyer- AYE, John Aaron- AYE, Dennis 
Ramsey- AYE, Juan Whittington- AYE, Michael Bates- AYE, Travis Barnard- AYE Whit Morris- AYE, 
Roy Easter- AYE, Richard Cumbie- -AYE, David Felts- AYE. 
 

Comp. Plan Update Discussion 
 
Mr. Deal provided the Planning Commission with information on the Comprehensive Plan Update 
process. He indicated that staff had received one quote from a consultant and was awaiting a 
second quote. Mr. Deal stated that he just wanted the Commissioners to be aware that this process 
was about to begin. 
  
VI.  CHAIRMAN’S COMMENTS 
 
VII. INFORMATIONAL  
 
VIII.       ADJOURNMENT  



 
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Chairman Moyer 
adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 
 
            
      Larkin Moyer, Chairman 
      Amelia County Planning Commission 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Brady Deal 
Director of Community Development  





























214

202

229228

227
226

225

222
221 220

219
218

217
216

215

213

212
211210

209
208

207

206

205
204

203 201

230231

15 16

26

1101

233 234235

393
393 39

2

392

392

39239
2

39
1

391

391

391
391

390
390

39
0

390

390

38
9

38
9

389

389

389

38
8

388
38

8

388

388

388

387

387

387
38

7
38

7

387

387

38
7

386

386

386

386

38
6

38
6

386

386

386

386

386
386

385

385

385

385

385

385

384

384

384

383

383

383

382

382

38
2

381

381

38
1

380

380

38
0

379

379

379

378

378

378

37
7

377

377

37
6

376

37
6

375
375375

37
5

375

375

374
374

374 374

37
4

374

373 373
373

373

37
3

373

372372
372

372

37
2

372

371 371

371 371

371

371

37
1

371

370 370

370 370

370

370

37
0

370

369 369

369 369

369

369

36
9

369

36
8

36
8 368

368

368

368

368

368

368

36
8

368

367
367367

367
36

7

367

36
7

367

367 367

367

36
7

367

366
366366

366

366

366

366

366

36
6

366

366

365
365

365

365

365

36
5

365

365

364
364

364

36
4

36
4

36
4

364

364

363
363

363
363

36
3

363

362

362

362

361

36
1

361

360

36
0

360

359

35
9

359

358

35
8

358

35
7

357

357

356356
356

356

356

356

35
5

355

35
5

35
5

354

354

354

35
4

354

354

353

353

353

35
3

353

353

35
2

352

352351

351

351

351

35
1

351

350

350

350

35
0

350

349

349

349

34
9

349

34
8

348

348

34
8

348

347
34

7

347
347

346

346

346

34
5

34
5

345

34
4

34
4

34
4

34
4

34
4

344

343

34
3

34
3

34
3

343

343

34
2

34
2

34
2

34
2

342

342

34
1

341

34
1

341

341

34034
0

340

33
9

339

339

33
8

33
8

33
8

338
338 33

7

33
7

337
33

7

33
7

336

336336

335

335

393
393 39

2

392

392

39239
2

39
1

391

391

391
391

390
390

39
0

390

390

38
9

38
9

389

389

389

38
8

388
38

8

388

388

388

387

387

387
38

7
38

7

387

387

38
7

386

386

386

386

38
6

38
6

386

386

386

386

386
386

385

385

385

385

385

385

384

384

384

383

383

383

382

382

38
2

381

381

38
1

380

380

38
0

379

379

379

378

378

378

37
7

377

377

37
6

376

37
6

375
375375

37
5

375

375

374
374

374 374

37
4

374

373 373
373

373

37
3

373

372372
372

372

37
2

372

371 371

371 371

371

371

37
1

371

370 370

370 370

370

370

37
0

370

369 369

369 369

369

369

36
9

369

36
8

36
8 368

368

368

368

368

368

368

36
8

368

367
367367

367
36

7

367

36
7

367

367 367

367

36
7

367

366
366366

366

366

366

366

366

36
6

366

366

365
365

365

365

365

36
5

365

365

364
364

364

36
4

36
4

36
4

364

364

363
363

363
363

36
3

363

362

362

362

361

36
1

361

360

36
0

360

359

35
9

359

358

35
8

358

35
7

357

357

356356
356

356

356

356

35
5

355

35
5

35
5

354

354

354

35
4

354

354

353

353

353

35
3

353

353

35
2

352

352351

351

351

351

35
1

351

350

350

350

35
0

350

349

349

349

34
9

349

34
8

348

348

34
8

348

347
34

7

347
347

346

346

346

34
5

34
5

345

34
4

34
4

34
4

34
4

34
4

344

343

34
3

34
3

34
3

343

343

34
2

34
2

34
2

34
2

342

342

34
1

341

34
1

341

341

34034
0

340

33
9

339

339

33
8

33
8

33
8

338
338 33

7

33
7

337
33

7

33
7

336

336336

335

335

393
393

392

392

392

391

391

391

390

390

390

389

38
9

389

388

38
8

388

387

387

387

38
7

387

386

386 386

38
6

386

386

386

386
386

385

385

385

385

385

384

384

384

383

383

383

382

382

38
2

381

381

381

380

380

380

379

379

379

378

378

378

377

377

377

37
6

376

37
6

37
5

375

37
5

374

37
4

374

373

37
3

373

372

37
2

372

371 371

371

37
1

371

370 370

370

37
0

370

369 369

369

36
9

369

36
8

36
8 368

368

368

368

36
8

368

367
367367

367
36

7

367

36
7

367

36
7

367

366
366366

366

366

366

366

366

365
365

365

365

365

365

365

365

364
364

364

36
4

36
4

364

364

364

363
363

363
363

36
3

363

362

362

362

361

36
1

361

360

36
0

360

359

359

359

358

358

358

357

357

357

356356
356

356

356

356

35
5

355

355

35
5

354

354

354

35
4

354

354

353

353

353

35
3

353

353

35
2

352

352351

351

351

351

35
1

351

350

350

350

35
0

350

349

349

349

34
9

349

34
8

348

348

348

348

347
34

7

347
347

346

34
6

346

34
5

345

345

34
4

34
4

34
4

344
34

4

344

343

34
3

34
3

343
343

343

34
2

34
2

34
2

342
342

342

34
1

341

341
341

341

340
340

340

339
339

33
9

33
8

338

338

33
7

33
7

337
33

7337

33
7

336

336336

335

335

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

 W

 W

 W

 W

 W

 W

 W

 W
 W

WM

269

271
274

276

278

281

279
280

272273

#182C

#182B

#182A

#191#190

#189DUNN STREET

14

36

35

34

33

32

31

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

1 2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

39
40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

59

50

51

38
37

30

SITE DATA:
AREA: 18.86 AC.

UNITS: 51 (2.70 DU/AC.)
LOT SIZE: 115'x70' (TYP.)

50' ROW, PUBLIC STREETS
OPEN SPACE: 3.06 AC. (15.9%)

NORT+

©

DUNN STREET DEVELOPMENT
PREPARED FOR

GITS MASONRY INC.
CONCEPT PLAN EX1





























PERSUANT TO SECTION 15.2-2204 OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA, 1950, AS 
AMENDED, I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A LETTER WAS MAILED TO EACH 
INDIVIDUAL LISTED ON THE REZONING APPLICATION, WHERE 
ADDRESSES WERE KNOWN,  NOTIFYING THEM OF THE PUBLIC HEARING 
TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 26, 2023, AT 7:30 P.M. IN THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM RELATING TO THE  REZONING 
REQUESTED FOR PROPERTY DISIGNATED AS LOT 110 & 111 OF SECTION 
31 OF THE AMELIA COUNTY REAL PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION TAX 
MAPS. 

BY: ____________
Brady Deal, Director of Community Development 



ARTICLE XXVI

Planned Community District (PCD)

§ 325-26.1. Intent and purpose. [Amended 5-20-1998]

§ 325-26.2. Design and layout.

Planned community districts shall be designed as distinct communities which provide maximum comfort

and convenience of residence and accessibility within the development. They shall have clear visual

identities and shall be separated from surrounding land uses through the use of open space and vegetative

buffers, locating public and commercial uses and higher density residential toward the center of the

community, and other similar measures.

§ 325-26.3. Location. [Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. I)]

Planned community districts may be located within or immediately adjacent to the Village Development

Areas and Corridor Development Areas as designated in the Comprehensive Plan.

§ 325-26.4. Permitted uses.

Location and extent of all uses must be shown on an approved concept development plan.

A. To provide design flexibility to respond sensitively to specific site conditions;

B. To provide design flexibility to allow for creativity and innovation in use of land;

C. To achieve a convenient and compatible mix of uses;

D. To provide and maintain community identity and sense of place;

E. To establish large areas of usable open space;

F. To maintain the rural character of the area with small villages and large expanses of open space;

G. To create stable communities in harmony with surrounding areas; and

H. To provide for efficient provision of public utilities and infrastructure.

A. Residential.

(1) Single-family detached dwellings.

(2) Single-family attached dwellings.

(3) Duplexes.

(4) Multifamily dwellings.

B. Commercial.

(1) All uses permitted by right in the B-1 Business District (in accordance with the approved

concept development plan).

(2) Home day care.

(3) Home occupation uses.

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210

§ 325-26.1 § 325-26.4

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210 on 2023-06-21

:1



§ 325-26.5. Permitted uses by special exception.

§ 325-26.6. Density, area and minimum standards.

The following are the standards for development of a planned community district. There shall be

two levels of planned community district: minor (development on 10 acres to 50 acres) and major

(development on more than 50 acres). Phased developments must meet the development standards and

requirements of the district level determined by the total acreage of the entire development.

Minor Major

Minimum total site area 10 acres 50 acres

Minimum area in planned open

space

10% 25%

Maximum residential density 0.25 (4 units per acre) 0.25 (4 units per acre)

Minimum residential lot size:

Detached 8,000 square feet 8,000 square feet.

Attached 2,000 square feet 2,000 square feet

Duplex 4,000 square feet 4,000 square feet

Multifamily 8,000 square feet 8,000 square feet

Minimum housing unit type 50% detached or attached units

Maximum proportion of

multifamily

25% 25%

Maximum proportion of duplex 25% 25%

Maximum total commercial area 20% not to exceed 10 acres 20% not to exceed 15 acres

C. Other uses.

(1) Schools.

(2) Structures for religious activities.

(3) Parks, playgrounds and noncommercial recreational areas and facilities.

(4) Accessory structures.

(5) Utilities serving the community.

(6) Services to residents.

A. All special exception uses permitted in the B-1 Business District (in accordance with approved

concept development plan).

B. Fire and rescue squad facilities.

C. Golf course; golf or boat clubs.

A. Total site area: total contiguous area less area in 100-year floodplain.

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210

§ 325-26.4 § 325-26.6

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210 on 2023-06-21

:2



§ 325-26.7. Setbacks and related requirements.

§ 325-26.8. Utilities.

All planned community districts must be served by central water and wastewater treatment facilities.

§ 325-26.9. Procedures.

While each project shall be evaluated by the staff, the Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors

on an individual basis, the following is a list of information that may be required to be furnished by the

applicant in order to fully evaluate and act on any request for a planned community district:

B. Open space does not include paved or lighted areas, utility right-of-way or bodies of water.

C. Total density: total site area divided by the number of dwellings.

A. Maximum height of structures: 35 feet.

B. Minimum road frontage: 100 feet.

C. Setback requirements:

(1) Single-family detached:

(a) Front yard: 15 feet.

(b) Side yard: 15 feet.

(c) Rear yard: 25 feet.

(2) Single-family attached and duplexes:

(a) Front yard: 15 feet.

(b) Side yard: 25 feet, where not attached.

(c) Rear yard: 25 feet.

(3) Multifamily:

(a) Front yard: 15 feet.

(b) Side yard: 25 feet.

(c) Rear yard: 25 feet.

(4) Accessory structures:

(a) Front yard: 15 feet.

(b) Side yard: five feet.

(c) Rear yard: five feet.

A. Existing conditions map showing existing natural and physical features such as roads, existing

vegetation, topography, existing structures, historic sites and structures, 100-year floodplain and soil

conditions.

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210

§ 325-26.6 § 325-26.9

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210 on 2023-06-21

:3



B. Proposed concept development plan showing:

(1) Proposed use of each lot or tract within the development;

(2) Proposed vehicular and pedestrian circulation plan, including all streets and parking areas;

(3) Proposed community facilities and uses, including proposed ownership of each;

(4) Proposed open space areas, including amount of land and how they will be preserved, owned

and used;

(5) Existing or proposed utilities;

(6) Proposed structures, landscaping, lighting and signage (for all nonresidential uses); and

(7) Any proposed deed restrictions and/or covenants.

C. Summary report which may include:

(1) Amount of land to be used for public or semipublic uses, such as schools, churches, etc.;

(2) Amount of land and facilities to be owned in common;

(3) Amount of land to be dedicated to local, state or federal government;

(4) Amount of land to be set aside for passive open space;

(5) Amount of land to be developed for active recreational uses;

(6) Amount of land within the 100-year floodplain, designated wetlands, etc.;

(7) Projected traffic counts (total average daily trips and a.m. and p.m. peak-hour trips);

(8) Proposed number of parking spaces for all uses other than residential and passive open space

areas;

(9) Total residential density (computed by dividing the total site area by the number of residential

units); and

(10) Homeowner association documents for maintenance and funding of common areas and

facilities.

D. Technical reports which may include any or all of the following:

(1) Statement of justification of the project;

(2) Traffic impact study, including planned connections to existing and proposed roads;

(3) Stormwater management plan;

(4) Environmental impact study;

(5) Wetlands identification and protection plan;

(6) Fiscal impact assessment;

(7) Utilities plan;

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210

§ 325-26.9 § 325-26.9

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210 on 2023-06-21

:4



§ 325-26.10. Application process.

§ 325-26.11. Exceptions.

Any exception granted from the standards and requirements set forth in §§ 325-26.6, 325-26.7, and

325-26.8 must follow the same procedures as those set forth in § 325-4.3 of this chapter, including a

public hearing before the Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors must grant any exception by

the issuance of a special exception permit.

(8) Phasing plan;

(9) Evidence of unified control of entire site area;

(10) Summary of any requested modifications to County policies and ordinances for the project;

(11) Waste stream impact study;

(12) Public facilities impact study; and

(13) Any other studies deemed necessary to properly evaluate the request.

A. Preapplication conference with County planning staff.

B. Submission of application.

C. Notice of acceptance from County Planning office, indicating application completeness.

D. Written referral comments received from County agencies and VDOT.

E. Planning Commission briefing and review of all referral comments.

F. Planning Commission public hearing.

G. Planning Commission action.

H. Board of Supervisors public hearing.

I. Board of Supervisors action.

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210

§ 325-26.9 § 325-26.11

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/AM4210 on 2023-06-21

:5


	RZN23-03 (Dunn Street PCD).pdf
	2023-03-08-Concept plan -PCD (1) (002).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	Planned Community District (PCD).pdf
	article XXVI Planned Community District (PCD)
	§ 325-26.1 Intent and purpose.
	§ 325-26.2 Design and layout.
	§ 325-26.3 Location.
	§ 325-26.4 Permitted uses.
	§ 325-26.5 Permitted uses by special exception.
	§ 325-26.6 Density, area and minimum standards.
	§ 325-26.7 Setbacks and related requirements.
	§ 325-26.8 Utilities.
	§ 325-26.9 Procedures.
	§ 325-26.10 Application process.
	§ 325-26.11 Exceptions.





